
 
 
 

Greenville County Procurement Services Division 
301 University Ridge, Suite 100 

Greenville, SC  29601-3660 
                                      Inmate Telephone Service System 

                                  RFP# 66-04/26/19 
 

County Square � 301 University Ridge � Suite 100 � Greenville, SC 29601-3665 � Fax (864) 467-7304                       

 
Questions and Answers 

 
Issued:  April 16, 2019 
 
NOTICE TO VENDORS: 
 
The following revisions, additions, and clarifications are hereby made part of the Contract 
Documents for the above-referenced project and shall be taken into account in the preparation 
of all proposals and the execution of all work. Responders shall acknowledge receipt of these 
Questions and Answers in their proposals. 
 
 

1. Will the County accept additional questions submitted for clarification after the release 
of the initial answers to questions submitted 4/11/2019? 

A. Upon review of questions and answers provided please contact Carson 
(cadkins@greenvillecounty.org) by 4/18/19 at 10:00 AM if you feel that any 
questions need clarifications. 

2. Will there be another opportunity besides the pre-bid meeting to conduct a site survey?  

A. Please contact Carson (cadkins@greenvillecounty.org) by 4/18/19 at 10:00 AM with 
your request for a second site visit including specific reasoning and areas of interest 
and the County will determine if a second site visit is deemed necessary. 

3. Is a bid bond required for this project? 

A. Bid bond is not required. 
 

4. How many copies of the response are needed?  
 
A. There will need to be five (5) bound copies and one (1) unbound original. 
 

5. Are free calls allowed in booking? If so, how many, and what is the length of the allowed 
free call? 
 
A. Free calls are allowed in Booking. There is no set limitation on the number of calls and 

the calls are 3-minutes in length.  

mailto:cadkins@greenvillecounty.org
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6. Can the County provide Revenue/Commission statements from the current inmate 
telephone provider, covering the most recent 12-month period?  
 
A. See attached. 

 
7. Can the County provide a copy of the current contract between Greenville County and the 

current provider of inmate communications, including any attachments or addendums? 
 
A. A copy of the current contract can be obtained by processing a Freedom of Information 

Act request with the Greenville County Procurement Services Division. 
 

8. Is there an interest or need for onsite and/or offsite Video Visitation?  
 

A. Not at this time, but vendors may provide the information in their response. 
 

9. Does the County currently utilize an AIS (Automated information System) from their 
current inmate phone provider?  
 
A. Yes. 

 
10. Will the additional phones be added to existing units? Or is there a new unit?  

 
A. The numbers have been updated. There are a total of 238 – 155 regular phones, 

5 Enrollment phones, and 78 visitation phones. 4 regular phones are needed and 
1 Enrollment phone is needed. 
 

11. Are the disposable plastic phones included in the count? 
 

A. No. 
 

12. How many disposable plastic phones are required to be on hand?  
 

A. Two (2) disposable phones are needed. 
 

13. Does the 193 include the 3 hands free in intake phones?  
 

A. These are included in the overall count. 
 

14. The RFP states four (4) TDD Phones are needed and also states that the number will be 
determined based on demographics of the inmate population so is the County 
requesting a minimum of 4?  

A. Reduce to two (2). 

 



 
 

County Square � 301 University Ridge � Suite 100 � Greenville, SC 29601-3665 � Fax (864) 467-7304 
 

3 

15. Does the county know now where they would like Cutoff Switches or are they stating 
they may need others installed with locations TBD? 
 
A. This is TBD/If needed. 

 
16. Will the county be responsible for any additional cable runs to add phones for example 

or will that be the vendors responsibility during installation? 
 
A. The County will assume no cost for installations. 
 

17. Will the county be able to get a file from their current provider of any free numbers 
currently in their system? 
 
A. Yes. 

 
18. Section I states “there are no physical cards sold on the canteen”, yet the RFP refers to 

them multiple times. Is this just a typo?  
 
A. No. Cards are not sold on the canteen; all transactions are electronic. Physical cards 

will be needed as incentives for inmates. Please provide the number of cards your 
company will include as part of the RFP. 

 
19. Please provide the number of phones per housing unit, bed count per housing unit and 

the average population for each housing unit.  
 
A. The number of phones and the bed count is included in a separate document that is 

attached. The average population per housing unit is not information that is stored. 
 

20. Please provide the budget required for the Greenville County on-site technician.  
 
A. We were previously provided an annual $40,000.00 technology grant in lieu of an 

onsite technician who would be responsible for copying telephone recordings, 
researching billing issues and maintaining equipment. 

 
21. Please provide the number of plastic and non-corded phones in the booking area. 
 

A. No plastic phones. Four (4) non-corded phones. 
 

22. Does the Call volume include Pay Now and Text to Connect calls? How many of these 
type calls were made in the time period provided?  

 
A. We do not use Pay Now or Text to Connect, so those figures are not included. 
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23. The RFP indicates that vendors shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda with their 
proposal. Do any addenda released need to be included with the proposal response or is 
a statement indicating receipt of the addendum and associated addenda number 
adequate?  
 
A. The addenda need to be included with the proposal response. 
 

24. Will the County please provide a site floorplan / housing layout?  
 
A. The County elects not to provide floor plans for security purposes. Vendors may 

choose to attend the site visit offered to gather the information needed. 
 

25. Please confirm the contract term length.  
 
A. 1 year with four renewals (up to 5 years). 
 

26. Will the County please confirm that multiple financial offers are acceptable to allow the 
County options to best select an approach that provides the benefits they are interested 
in for the inmates, and the public?  
 
A. Multiple financial offers are acceptable with explanation of any related service/fee 

changes. All options will be considered. 
 

27. Evaluation Criteria – Call Rates/Consumer Value – Please provide the methodology used 
to compare different providers’ call rate offers and how the 15 evaluation points will be 
calculated amongst providers.  
 
A. Each provider’s rates over the course of the time frame allotted for phone calls will 

be evaluated to determine the best value for the consumer. All types of calls will be 
considered. The providers will be ranked and a point value will be assigned. 

 
28. Evaluation Criteria – Customer Fees/Consumer Value – Please provide the methodology 

used to compare different providers’ customer fees and how the 15 evaluation points 
will be calculated amongst providers.  

A. While it is understood that the cost of business will necessitate that fees be imposed 
for certain services to the customer; it is the goal of the County to minimize any fees 
associated with services offered by the provider. The County will review the type of 
services offered in comparison to the cost of the service. Vendors will be ranked in 
terms of value and scored accordingly.  
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29. Evaluation Criteria – Facility Commission/Options/Total Compensation Value – Please 
provide the methodology used to compare different providers’ commission offers and 
how the 5 evaluation points will be calculated amongst providers.  

A. Facility commissions will not be considered independently of the options (i.e. 
investigative software) with respect to the affect that additional options may have 
on the commissions offered. The County wishes to have access to an array of 
options for the County and the Public with the least impact on commissions. 
Vendors will be ranked in terms of Total Compensation Value and will be scored 
accordingly.  

30. Evaluation Criteria – Programs to Maximize Revenue – Please provide the methodology 
used to compare different providers’ offers which maximize revenue and how the 15 
evaluation points will be calculated amongst providers.  

A. This category will evaluate the programs offered for inmates and the Public that 
have the ability to create additional commissionable revenue. All program fees must 
be reasonable with respect to the type of program being offered. Vendors will be 
ranked in terms of Total Compensation Value and will be scored accordingly.   

31. Evaluation Criteria – Programs to Maximize Revenue – Please explain how this 
evaluation category is different than Facility Commission/Options/Total Compensation 
Value and how the evaluation points will be calculated amongst providers.  

A. Please see above. 

32. What vendor provides the inmate trust banking – Oasis, TechFriends, or other?  

A. Tech Friends is the subcontractor for Oasis Commissary and they provide the 
banking software. 

33. The Vendor shall provide pre-paid cards for sale to inmates in a manner to be 
determined by the Facility and Vendor. In what denominations are the prepaid cards 
sold? 
 

A. Prepaid cards will not be sold. Vendor shall have a procedure to refund unused 
balances from prepaid cards. The County prefers to include any telephone 
refund in our debit card release process. 

 
34. How does the County currently refund unused money on cards?  

 
A. The County currently allows inmates to purchase phone time electronically, with 

no physical cards. An interface exists that refunds unused money at the time of 
release. 
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35. If the card was supplied to the inmate by the Facility at no cost (e.g. as an incentive 
reward), is there any refund to be made of unused funds on such cards? If so, who 
receives the refund? 
 

A. We do not offer refunds for incentive cards. 
 

36. Does the County currently have a debit release card program in place? 
 

A.  Yes.  
 

37. Can the County clarify if it is recordings that must be transferred from an existing ITS 
platform to a new ITS platform, or if the intent is to move system data (PINs, PAN, 
blocked numbers, etc.)?  
 
A. The recordings will be stored on the “leave behind platform” or made available 

through continued access to incumbent’s platform. All other information will need 
to be transferred. 

 
38. Can vendors re-use existing wiring for the phones?  

 
A. Existing wiring may be re-used. 
 

39. Is there a deadline to have the project complete?  
 
A. July 1, 2019 would be the target date. Vendors would need to justify a longer 

transition period. 
 

40. Is there an expected RFP award or contract signature date? What is the start date for 
the project?  
 
A. The tentative award date is May 3, 2019. The contract should be signed by May 17, 

2019. 
 

41. Per RFP p. 16, 4.e. Proposal Format Exhibits are to be listed in the order outlined, with 
Acknowledge Receipt of Addenda first and Specifications Exceptions Summary second. 
However, on p. 12, Requirement III.B it requires the Specifications Exceptions Summary 
to be Exhibit A, and there is no Exhibit B indicated in the RFP. Did the County intend 
these exhibit names instead:  

A. Vendor Exhibit A, Acknowledge Receipt of Addenda  
B. Vendor Exhibit B, Specifications Exceptions Summary. 

 
A. Yes. The order above is correct. 
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42. Will the County please outline the fees that are being charged by the current vendor: 

A. Bill Statement Fee – attached 
B. PrePaid Account Funding Fee via Web – $3.00 
C. PrePaid Account Funding Fee via IVR – $3.00 
D. PrePaid Account Funding Fee via Live Operator – $5.95 
E. Fees for Instant Pay Calls – Not utilized. 

 
43. Please provide the commission percentage currently received on inmate telephone 

revenue, an average of monthly commissions received over the past year from the 
current vendor, and copies of commission statements from the last six months.  
 
A. Commission Rate is 61.2%. See attached. 

 
44. As discussed at the pre-proposal meeting, please provide a breakdown of equipment by 

housing unit. Please also include the inmate capacity for each housing unit.  
 
A. See attached. 

45. Please provide a breakdown of the inmate population, in percentages or actual 
numbers, by local, DOC, or other agency.  

A. Current population breakdown report not a standardized report. The following 
information is available regarding February’s Commitments: 1476-Local, 30 non-
local, 5 DOC, 12 Federal Government 

46. In order to ensure a level playing field for all bidders, please confirm that the successful 
vendor must provide new equipment.  Also, please verify that this applies to both new 
potential bidders and the incumbent provider.  

A. The County requires the most up to date technology available from each vendor and 
that may or may not require new equipment. Vendor experience and expertise 
should allow vendors to have financial models that support competitive bidding 
against incumbent vendors.     

 
47. How many calling cards are typically used each year?  

 
A. Free, vendor issued, calling cards are used only for incentives and we have used 

approximately $2500.00 annually. 
  

48. What does the County expect to see from the calling cards program in the future?  
 
A. Increased usage as incentives.  

  



 
 

County Square � 301 University Ridge � Suite 100 � Greenville, SC 29601-3665 � Fax (864) 467-7304 
 

8 

49. Does the County anticipate any changes to the current process?  
 
A. Yes. Certain staff members need the ability to issue phone time credits 

electronically.  
 

50. How many visitation phone pairs are currently installed at each facility? Are they wired 
to the inmate telephone system for recording and monitoring today?  
 
A. There are 39 pairs and they are wired for monitoring and recording. 
 

51. Some vendors provide alternate payment options, such as the ability to purchase a one-
time phone call using a credit or debit card, without the necessity of setting up a 
prepaid account. Does the County allow this type of charging practice at their Facility?  
 
A. The County does not allow this charging practice. 

 

52. The  proposal formatting instructions identified exhibits with roman numerals but the 
requirements reference the exhibits with the alphabet.  For example, requirement 22 
under Section V. asks vendors to include voice prompts in the Vendor Exhibit M but the 
format instructions have that as Exhibit xiii. Which numbering format would the county  
like for responsive proposals? 

A.  Please use Vendor Exhibit “M”. 

53. The debit and pre-paid card applications shall allow international calls. The Vendor shall 
provide a list of international countries where calls will be allowed and calling rates for 
each country in Attachment E “International Call Rates”. But the formatting section has 
International Call Rates as Attachment D.? 

A. Attachment “D” is the correct reference. 

54. Is there an approximate number of the free prepaid phone cards the Greenville County 
Detention Center uses on a monthly or yearly basis?  

A. Approximately $2500.00 annually. 

55. Is the desired “inexpensive disposable plastic phone” wired and terminated with an RJ-
11 connector?  

A. Yes. 

56. Is the need for RJ-11 jacks to support these phones is only in the Medical Unit.  

A. Yes; only in the medical unit. 
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57. Are the required jacks for the disposable phones already installed? Are these wired 
through the ITS or directly to the PTSN?  

A. Jacks are Built into phones and wired through the ITS. 
  

58. Is it okay to reference Vendor Exhibits according to the Roman Numerals listed in the 
Proposal Format section of the RFP.  
 
A. Please use the alphabetical format as the exhibits are labeled in that manner. In the 

proposed format section, different information is being requested. The roman 
numerals refer to the sections, from the Table of Contents that must be answered in 
Narrative format. 

 
 

59. Can the list of audits be limited to the past five years.  
 
A. It is acceptable to limit the audits to the past 5 years. 
 

60. What is the total number of visitation phones sets vendors will need to replace? Do 
these phones have keypads? 

 
A. 39 phones sets will need to be replaced. Yes, these phones have keypads.  

 
61. Will onsite video visits be part of the RFP as well?  

 
A. No, onsite video visits can be an option presented by vendor. 

 
62. Is the facility using Roller Phones?   

 
A. No.     
 

63. Are there any TTY units being used?  If yes, how many?  
 
A. Yes, Two (2).  
 

64. Who is the current or preferred internet provider?  
 
A. Some vendors use Charter communications. We’re not aware of other available 

companies. 
 

65.  Do inmates do commissary ordering over the phones?  
 
A. Yes.  
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66. Do inmates purchase phone time thru the commissary vendor?  
 
A. Yes. 
 

67.  Do inmates use physical debit cards or a cardless debit system?  
 
A. Both. Cardless for purchased phone time and cards for incentives given by staff.  
 

68.  Are there any early release programs at the facility that affects ADP?   
 
A. Electronic monitoring has the ability to place inmates in the community who may 

otherwise be in jail, but the current ADP reflects that dynamic.  
 

69. The proposal mentions lobby kiosks in one of the fee forms.  Are lobby kiosks a part of 
this RFP, or will we need to integrate with the facility's current lobby kiosk vendor?  
 
A. No, but they may be presented as an option, vendors will need to integrate with the 

current lobby kiosk vendor, Oasis Commissary Systems. 
 
 
END OF QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 


